
AGENDA
BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.

Tuesday, September 6, 2016

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

a. Proclamation supporting participation in “The Big Read” Program, “Into the Beautiful
North” (Leavy)

b. Proclamation recognizing the 120th Anniversary of the Daughters of American Revolution
(Leavy)

c. Proclamation celebrating the 175th Anniversary of St. Paul Episcopal Church (Leavy)

d. Proclamation recognizing September as National Infant Mortality Awareness Month
(Hendrix)

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

a. Proposed Ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map of the City of Beloit
Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use designation of the property located
at 1750 Raven Drive (previously Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd) from
Parks & Open Spaces to Single-Family Residential - Urban (Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0. First Reading

b. Proposed Ordinance amending the City of Beloit Zoning District Map for property located
at 1750 Raven Drive (previously Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd) from PLI,
Public Lands and Institutions District to R-1A, Single Family Residential District
(Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0. First Reading

c. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor entertainment venue
with beer sales & consumption in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, for a golf
simulation lab within the Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third Street
(Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

d. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and
outdoor sales, possession & consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1028 Mary Street
(Christensen)
Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0



5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no
separate discussion of these items unless a Council member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the
General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.

a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of August 15 and Special Meeting of
August 23, 2016 (Stottler)

b. Application for American Transmission Company (ATC) for a Utility Easement located at
3015 Cranston Road (Christensen) Refer to Plan Commission

c. Application for Condominium Plat for Walnut Grove Condominiums located at 2260 
and 2265 Walnut Street  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission

7. ORDINANCES

a. Proposed Ordinance attaching the property located at 2028 E Ridge Road to the City of
Beloit (Christensen) First reading, suspend rules for second reading.

8. APPOINTMENTS - None

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION - None

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. Resolution authorizing the Purchase of 106 Bluff Street from John Wergin (Christensen)

b. Resolution providing for the Sale of approximately $13,450,000 Water System Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C (Miller)

c. Resolution denying Petition to remove the Public Sidewalk adjacent to 1650 Ritsher
Street (Boysen)

d. Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement between the School District of
Beloit and the City of Beloit for Adult School Crossing Guards (Zibolski/Krueger)

e. Resolution approving Intergovernmental Agreement between the School District of Beloit
and the City of Beloit for the Truancy Intervention Coordinator/Juvenile First Time
Offender Program Coordinator (Krueger)

12. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of
disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service, please contact the
City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

Dated: August 31, 2016
Lorena Rae Stottler
City of Beloit City Clerk
www.beloitwi.gov

You can watch this meeting live on Charter PEG digital channel 992. Meetings are
rebroadcast during the week of the Council meeting on Tuesday at 1:00 p.m.;

Thursday at 8:30 a.m.; and Friday at 1:00 p.m.



WHEREAS, the Beloit Public Library, Beloit College, The South Beloit Public Library, The School
District of Beloit, The School District of South Beloit and the Grinnell Hall Senior Center stand firmly
committed to promoting reading as the catalyst for the citizens of the Stateline Area to cross the
borders of understanding, and affirm their commitment to the support of lifelong learning and an
informed citizenry; and

WHEREAS, The National Endowment for the Arts (NEA) Big Read community-wide reading of the
same book provides a forum for members of the community to share their thoughts, opinions, and
experiences; and encourages families, friends, and co-workers to discuss literature and the ideas
presented through books; and the book "Into the Beautiful North" by Luis Alberto Urrea promotes
understanding between cultures; and

WHEREAS, The NEA Big Read – Stateline coincides with National Hispanic Heritage Month, and
promotes community involvement in the education of our youth, grounded in the principle that
educational investment is key to the community's well-being and long-term quality of life; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit is aware of the important role that libraries and our educational
institutions have in ensuring the quality of life for our citizens,

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL does hereby
proclaim the month of September 15th to October 15th, 2016 as NEA Big Read – Stateline Month.

AND BE IT FURTHER PROCLAIMED that this body encourages our communities to engage in the
programs and activities being planned to continue their pursuit of happiness, knowledge, tolerance and
understanding.

Dated this 6th day of September 2016.

________________________________
David F. Luebke, President
Beloit City Council

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



WHEREAS, the National Society Daughters of the American Revolution® is one of the

world’s largest and most active women’s service organizations; and

WHEREAS, the Beloit Chapter of the National Society Daughters of the American

Revolution (DAR) will commemorate its 120th anniversary the week of September 4-11, 2016;

and

WHEREAS, the Beloit Chapter of the DAR invites the public to an open house at the

Rasey House, 517 Prospect St., on Sunday, September 11, 2016; and

WHEREAS, members of the local chapter promote historic preservation, patriotism,

provide awards and scholarships to youth, and perform community service to improve the lives

of those in the Greater Beloit area.

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OF THE BELOIT CITY

COUNCIL does hereby proclaim the week of September 4 through September 10, 2016 as

DAUGHTERS OF THE AMERICAN REVOLUTION® WEEK in the City of Beloit, and

encourages all citizens to recognize the contributions made by members of this vital

organization.

Presented this 6th day of September, 2016.

___________________________

David F. Luebke, President

Beloit City Council

Attest:

________________________

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



WHEREAS, St. Paul’s Episcopal Church was organized in 1841 when five Episcopal families
decided they needed a formal place of worship; and

WHEREAS, as one of the earliest Episcopal churches in Wisconsin, their first church building was
consecrated in 1845 and was only 20’ X 30’; and

WHEREAS, the congregation quickly outgrew that space and by 1851 a new church built of stone
and timbers from the Big Hills woods was dedicated on the current location at 212 W. Grand Avenue;
and

WHEREAS, St. Paul’s Episcopal Church parish has a long history of providing ministries to the
community and is a founding member of Caritas and Hands of Faith, with church members staffing a
Meals on Wheels route one week each month; and

WHEREAS, the parish has hosted AA and NA groups and provides financial support to local
groups such as the Fatherhood Initiative, the Domestic Violence Shelter, and the Beloit Regional
Hospice; and

WHEREAS, the diverse congregation welcomes people of all ages and walks of life, joyously
sharing a conviction of following Christ’s teachings and making a difference in the Greater Beloit
community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED THAT, in recognition of 175 years of commitment and
generous service to the Beloit community, growing in faith and spirituality, the City of Beloit does
hereby honor and congratulate St. Paul’s Episcopal Church on this important milestone and extends best
wishes on continuing their ministry far into the future.

Presented this 6th day of September, 2016.

________________________________
David F. Luebke, City Council President

ATTEST:

____________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



WHEREAS, infant mortality is a critical health problem facing the State of Wisconsin; and

WHEREAS, infants born to African American women in Wisconsin are nearly two times as likely
to die before their first birthday as infants born to white women; and

WHEREAS, in 2005 Marilyn Sloan Kilgore was instrumental in forming the Beloit African
American Infant Mortality Coalition; and

WHEREAS, the mission of the African American Infant Mortality Coalition in Beloit is “To reduce
infant deaths in the African American population of Beloit through education and awareness;” and

WHEREAS, in 2010 that coalition partnered with the Wisconsin Partnership Program to form the
Beloit Lifecourse Initiative for Healthy Families; and

WHEREAS, the Beloit African American Infant Mortality Coalition and the Beloit Lifecourse
Initiative for Healthy Families provides critical services to women and their infants in our community;
and

WHEREAS, as a tireless advocate for the community, Marilyn Sloan Kilgore helped connect
public health services, local organizations and community members to initiate change; and

WHEREAS, in the spirit of keeping her memory alive, friends and family of Marilyn Sloan Kilgore
will commemorate her contributions, teaching and counseling activities with a special event called “A
Spirit of Service in Honor of Marilyn Sloan Kilgore” at the Merrill Community Center on September 17,
2016 from 3:00 – 5:30 p.m.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED that the Beloit City Council does hereby recognize the
contributions of Marilyn Sloan Kilgore in promoting awareness and education about African American
Infant Mortality by declaring September as National Infant Mortality Awareness Month in the City of
Beloit; and calls upon all Beloit citizens to support the special event on September 17, 2016 at the
Merrill Community Center.

Dated this 6th day of September 2016.

________________________________
David F. Luebke, President
Beloit City Council

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. _____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
CITY OF BELOIT COMPREHENSIVE PLAN

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City of Beloit Comprehensive
Plan, adopted in §12.015 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is hereby
amended as follows:

The future land use category of the following described land is hereby changed from
Parks & Open Spaces to Single-Family Residential – Urban:

Legal Description:

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 2059860 as recorded in Volume 37 on
Pages 394-396 of the Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of
Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1750 Raven Drive). Said
parcel contains 1.867 acres, more or less.

Section 2. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this _______ day of ____________________, 2016.

City Council of the City of Beloit

________________________________________
David F. Luebke, Council President

Attest:

_____________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

Published this _______ day of ________________________, 2016.

Effective this _______day of ________________________, 2016.

01-611100-5231-__________





4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Comprehensive Plan Amendment – 1750 Raven Drive (Previously Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd)

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department(s): Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
New Leaf Homes has submitted an application requesting an amendment to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan.

Key Issues:
 The applicant is requesting the following amendment to the Future Land Use Map:

o 1750 Raven Drive (Previously Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd) – From Parks & Open Spaces
to Single-Family Residential – Urban.

 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the City of Beloit. If the
applicant’s land use applications are approved, the 2 acres subject to this request will be subdivided into five new
home sites and Raven Drive will be completed as a cul-de-sac. As part of this process, Raven Drive will be
renamed Raven Court. A rendering of this concept is attached.

 The remaining 6.7 acres behind the existing homes on Eagles Ridge Drive will remain as City-owned open space
and are not subject to this request. The proposed map amendment is related to the applicant’s concurrent request
to rezone the 2 acres under contract from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to R-1A, Single-Family
Residential. The applicant recently recorded a CSM to subdivide the 2 acres to be rezoned & purchased.

 A Location & Zoning Map is attached to this report. A shown on the attached map, there are existing single-family
homes and/or lots to the west, south, and east of the land that is subject to this request. The land to the north of
the subject property is planned and zoned for office/business park uses.

 The existing Future Land Use Map is attached to this report, along with the land use legend.
 The proposed Map Amendment will allow New Leaf Homes to construct a low-density, suburban-style cul-de-sac

development that is compatible with the density and character of the neighborhood. Raven Drive was designed
and constructed to extend to the north, and the applicant’s proposal will establish a fixed northern edge for this
residential subdivision, while leaving nearly 7 acres of public open space between the originally constructed
homes on Eagles Ridge Drive and the business park land to the north.

 The Plan Commission held a public hearing to consider the requested amendment on July 20, 2016 and voted
unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval of the requested amendment. Their Resolution is attached.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
and 2

nd
readings of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The proposed purchase price is $20,000, and once purchased, the subject property will
become taxable residential land.

Attachments: Ordinance, Plan Commission Resolution, and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 20, 2016 Agenda Item: 6 File Number: RPB-2016-05

Request Overview/Background Information:
New Leaf Homes has submitted an application requesting an amendment to the Future Land Use Map (Map 10) of the
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan. Wisconsin’s Comprehensive Planning Law, §66.1001 of the Wisconsin Statutes,
requires all cities that regulate land use through land use ordinances (e.g. zoning) to adopt a Comprehensive Plan.
Comprehensive Plans are intended to guide development and redevelopment over a 20-year timeframe. The law also
requires that land use decisions be consistent with the plan.

The Beloit City Council approved the City’s Comprehensive Plan in 2008 after an extensive public participation program.
All land use decisions made by the City of Beloit, including any actions regarding official mapping, local subdivision
regulation, and zoning regulations, must be consistent with the plan. The Beloit City Council established a process for
amendments (minor changes) to the Comprehensive Plan in 2010. The Plan Commission’s recommendation to approve
or deny this request will be forwarded to the City Council for consideration on September 6, 2016.

Key Issues:
 The applicant is requesting the following amendment to the Future Land Use Map:

o Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd (adjacent to Raven Drive) – From Parks & Open Spaces to
Single-Family Residential – Urban.

 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the City of Beloit. If the
applicant’s land use applications are approved, the 2 acres subject to this request will be subdivided into five new
home sites and Raven Drive will be completed as a cul-de-sac. As part of this process, Raven Drive will be
renamed Raven Court. A rendering of this concept is attached.

 The remaining 6.7 acres behind the existing homes on Eagles Ridge Drive will remain as City-owned open space
and are not subject to this request. The proposed map amendment is related to the applicant’s concurrent request
to rezone the 2 acres under contract from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to R-1A, Single-Family
Residential. The applicant has also submitted a CSM to subdivide the 2 acres to be rezoned & purchased.

 A Location & Zoning Map is attached to this report. A shown on the attached map, there are existing single-family
homes and/or lots to the west, south, and east of the land that is subject to this request. The land to the north of
the subject property is planned and zoned for office/business park uses.

 The existing Future Land Use Map is attached to this report, along with the land use legend.
 Recent History

o The City purchased the subject property in late 2012, following the completion of Gateway Blvd. At the
time of purchase, the subject property was part of a larger 44-acre parcel zoned R-1A that extended to
the north. In February 2014, the City subdivided the 44-acre parcel into a 35-acre future office/business
park development parcel along Gateway Blvd and an 8.6-acre parcel to serve primarily as a buffer behind
the then-existing homes along Eagles Ridge Drive. The Raven Drive dead-end existed at the time and
was always contemplated for completion, but during the recession there was absolutely no demand for
single-family lots, nor was there a clear answer for how this subdivision might evolve. Accordingly, the
northern 35-acre parcel (subsequently addressed as 1801 Gateway Blvd) was rezoned from R-1A to C-1,
Office District in June 2014 to allow future office/business park development. The southern 8.6-acre
parcel was rezoned to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions during the same rezoning action in June 2014.

 Public Comments
o Planning staff has been contacted by two neighboring property owners who are concerned about

changes to their existing views following this single-family development.
 Land Use Analysis – Proposed Single-Family Residential Use

o The proposed Map Amendment will allow New Leaf Homes to construct a low-density, suburban-style cul-
de-sac development that is compatible with the density and character of the neighborhood. Raven Drive
was designed and constructed to extend to the north, and the applicant’s proposal will establish a fixed
northern edge for this residential subdivision, while leaving nearly 7 acres of public open space between
the originally constructed homes on Eagles Ridge Drive and the business park land to the north.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
 The City’s compliance with the Comprehensive Planning law’s consistency requirement is the impetus for this

request.



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the following proposed amendment to the Future
Land Use Map (Map 10) of the City’s Comprehensive Plan:

o Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd (adjacent to Raven Drive) – From Parks & Open Spaces to
Single-Family Residential – Urban.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The proposed purchase price is $20,000, and once purchased, the subject property would
become taxable residential land.

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Future Land Use Map, Concept, Public Notice, Mailing List, and Resolution.



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report

Map 10, Future Land Use (Narrowed to Subject Property)



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report

Raven Court Concept



4.a RPB-2016-05, Comp Plan Amendment (New Leaf Homes), Council Report





4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report

ORDINANCE NO. ____________

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE
ZONING DISTRICT MAP OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:

Section 1. The Zoning District Map of the City of Beloit, mentioned in the Zoning Code,
Chapter 19 of the Code of General Ordinances of the City of Beloit, is amended as follows:

The following described land, also known as 1750 Raven Drive, is hereby changed from PLI,
Public Lands & Institutions District to R-1A, Single-Family Residential District:
Legal Description:

Lot 1 of Certified Survey Map Document No. 2059860 as recorded in Volume 37 on
Pages 394-396 of the Certified Survey Maps of Rock County, located in the City of
Beloit, County of Rock, State of Wisconsin (also known as 1750 Raven Drive). Said
parcel contains 1.867 acres, more or less.

Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage and
publication.

Adopted this ____ day of ___________, 2016.

City Council of the City of Beloit

David F. Luebke, Council President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

Published this ____ day of _________, 2016

Effective this ____ day of _________, 2016

01-611100-5231-



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Zoning Map Amendment – 1750 Raven Drive (Previously Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd)

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
New Leaf Homes has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification
from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, for the property located at 1750
Raven Drive (previously known as the easternmost 2 acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd).

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the City of Beloit. The applicant

has constructed and sold numerous spec houses in the Eagles Ridge subdivision. If the applicant’s land use
applications are approved, the 2 acres subject to this request will be subdivided into five new home sites and
Raven Drive will be completed as a cul-de-sac. As part of this process, Raven Drive will be renamed Raven
Court. A rendering of this concept is attached.

 The remaining 6.7 acres behind the existing homes on Eagles Ridge Drive will remain zoned PLI as City-owned
open space and are not subject to this request. The applicant recently recorded a CSM to subdivide the 2 acres to
be rezoned & purchased, hence the new address of 1750 Raven Drive. A Location & Zoning Map is attached to
this report. A shown on the attached map, there are existing single-family homes and/or lots to the west, south,
and east of the land that is subject to this request. The land to the north of the subject property is planned and
zoned (C-1) for office/business park uses.

 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties and installed a sign on the
property. Planning staff has been contacted by two neighboring property owners who are concerned about
changes to their existing views following this single-family development.

 The proposed R-1A classification will allow New Leaf Homes to construct a low-density, suburban-style cul-de-
sac development that is compatible with the density and character of the neighborhood. Raven Drive was
designed and constructed to extend to the north, and the applicant’s proposal will establish a fixed northern edge
for this residential subdivision, while leaving nearly 7 acres of public open space between the originally
constructed homes on Eagles Ridge Drive and the business park land to the north.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on July 20, 2016 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval
of this Zoning Map Amendment.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (#10) recommends Parks & Open Spaces for the subject property,
although the applicant has submitted a separate request to amend Map #10 to recommend Single-Family Residential –
Urban uses. Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
and 2

nd
readings of the proposed Ordinance

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The proposed purchase price is $20,000, and once sold, the property will become taxable.

Attachments: Ordinance and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: July 20, 2016 Agenda Item: 7 File Number: ZMA-2016-03

Applicant: New Leaf Homes Owner: City of Beloit Location: 1601 Gateway Blvd

Current Zoning: PLI, Public Lands
Proposed Zoning: R-1A, Single-Fam.

Existing Land Use: Vacant Land Parcel Size: 1.9 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
New Leaf Homes has submitted an application for a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification
from PLI, Public Lands & Institutions District to R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, for the easternmost 2 acres of the
property located at 1601 Gateway Blvd (adjacent to Raven Drive).

The Zoning Ordinance directs the Plan Commission to hold a hearing and make a recommendation regarding a Zoning
Map Amendment when the specific site and context are suitable for the uses permitted in the proposed zoning district.

Key Issues:
 The applicant has made an accepted offer to purchase the subject property from the City of Beloit. The applicant

has constructed and sold numerous spec houses in the Eagles Ridge subdivision. If the applicant’s land use
applications are approved, the 2 acres subject to this request will be subdivided into five new home sites and
Raven Drive will be completed as a cul-de-sac. As part of this process, Raven Drive will be renamed Raven
Court. A rendering of this concept is attached.

 The remaining 6.7 acres behind the existing homes on Eagles Ridge Drive will remain zoned PLI as City-owned
open space and are not subject to this request. The applicant has also submitted a CSM to subdivide the 2 acres
to be rezoned & purchased.

 A Location & Zoning Map is attached to this report. A shown on the attached map, there are existing single-family
homes and/or lots to the west, south, and east of the land that is subject to this request. The land to the north of
the subject property is planned and zoned (C-1) for office/business park uses.

 Planning staff mailed the attached Public Notice to the owners of nearby properties and installed a sign on the
property. Planning staff has been contacted by two neighboring property owners who are concerned about
changes to their existing views following this single-family development.

 Findings of Fact - Based on Section 2-304 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a
recommendation based on the following considerations:

a. The existing use of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The proposed R-1A classification will allow New Leaf Homes to construct a low-density,

suburban-style cul-de-sac development that is compatible with the density and character of
the neighborhood. Raven Drive was designed and constructed to extend to the north, and the
applicant’s proposal will establish a fixed northern edge for this residential subdivision, while
leaving nearly 7 acres of public open space between the originally constructed homes on
Eagles Ridge Drive and the business park land to the north.

b. The zoning classification of property within the general area of the subject property;
 The subject property is surrounded by an existing R-1A district and will simply expand the

size of that single-family district.

c. The suitability of the subject property for the uses permitted under the existing zoning classification;
and

 The subject property is suitable for open space uses, but leaving an incomplete dead-end
street and the associated infrastructure in place would be inefficient planning & design.

d. The trend of development and zoning map amendments in the general area of the subject property.
 The City purchased the subject property in late 2012, following the completion of Gateway

Blvd. At the time of purchase, the subject property was part of a larger 44-acre parcel zoned
R-1A that extended to the north. In February 2014, the City subdivided the 44-acre parcel into
a 35-acre future office/business park development parcel along Gateway Blvd and an 8.6-
acre parcel to serve primarily as a buffer behind the then-existing homes along Eagles Ridge
Drive. The Raven Drive dead-end existed at the time and was always contemplated for
completion, but during the recession there was absolutely no demand for single-family lots,



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report

nor was there a clear answer for how this subdivision might evolve. Accordingly, the northern
35-acre parcel (subsequently addressed as 1801 Gateway Blvd) was rezoned from R-1A to
C-1, Office District in June 2014 to allow future office/business park development. The
southern 8.6-acre parcel was rezoned to PLI, Public Lands & Institutions during the same
rezoning action in June 2014.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (#10) recommends Parks & Open Spaces for the subject property,
although the applicant has submitted a separate request to amend Map #10 to recommend Single-Family Residential –
Urban uses for the 2 acres that are subject to this rezoning request.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
Based upon the above Findings of Fact and the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Planning & Building Services Division
recommends approval of a Zoning Map Amendment to change the zoning district classification from PLI, Public Lands &
Institutions District to R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, for the easternmost 2 acres of the property located at 1601
Gateway Blvd (adjacent to Raven Drive).

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: The proposed purchase price is $20,000.

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Raven Court Concept, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report

Raven Court Concept



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report



4.b ZMA-2016-03, New Leaf Homes (1750 Raven Drive), Council Report



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW
AN INDOOR ENTERTAINMENT VENUE WITH BEER SALES & CONSUMPTION WITHIN

THE IRONWORKS COMPLEX LOCATED AT 625-701 THIRD STREET

WHEREAS, the application of Jeff Whiteman of Geronimo Hospitality Group for a Conditional
Use Permit to allow an indoor entertainment venue with beer sales & consumption in an M-2, General
Manufacturing District, for a golf simulation lab within the Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third
Street, having been considered by the City Council of the City of Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing
held for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having been given by publication as appears by the
Proof of Publication on file in the office of the City Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of Beloit,
Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor entertainment
venue with beer sales & consumption in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, for a golf simulation lab
within the Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third Street in the City of Beloit, for the following
described premises:

PART OF BLOCKS 14, 15 AND 16 OF HANCHETT AND LAWRENCE'S ADDITION,
ALSO LOTS 1-9 OF TENNEY'S ADDITION, ALSO LOTS 36-42 AND 57-59 OF HACKETT
ADDITION, ALSO INCLUDING THOSE PORTIONS OF VACATED ST. LAWRENCE
AVENUE, SECOND STREET, THIRD STREET THE HEAD AND TAIL RACE, BEING ALL
A PART OF GOVERNMENT LOTS 2 AND 3 OF SECTION 35, T. 1 N., R. 12 E. OF THE
4TH P.M., NOW CITY OF BELOIT, ROCK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby stipulate the
following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby deemed necessary for
the public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes an indoor golf simulation lab up to 8,000 square feet in
floor area within 625 Third Street, Suite 100 of the Ironworks campus as shown on the floor plan
submitted with the application.

2. Beer sales, possession, and consumption are allowed within the golf simulation lab, provided a
beer license is obtained and retained at all times. Beer sales & consumption shall end at 10 PM
every night.

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan
Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of
Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory
structures and uses that comply with and meet all of the standards and requirements of the City of
Beloit Municipal Code.

Adopted this 6th day of September, 2016.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

David F. Luebke, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 625-701 Third Street

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Jeff Whiteman of Geronimo Hospitality Group has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor
entertainment venue with beer sales & consumption in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, for a proposed golf
simulation lab within the Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third Street. The proposed use is classified as
“Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales/Service,” which requires a Conditional Use Permit to operate in an M-2, General
Manufacturing District. If the Conditional Use Permit is approved, the City Council is authorized to impose conditions it
deems necessary to reduce or minimize any potential adverse effects on surrounding properties.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The proposed golf simulation lab is approximately 8,000 square-feet in area, and will include digital simulators, a

putting surface, a driving range, and a lobby/bar area near the entrance from the new Ironworks “spine” roadway.
The proposed facility will be open to the public, and will utilize a shared corridor with ADA access and bathrooms
as shown on the attached floor plan.

 The application and the overall floor plan for the central portion of Ironworks are also attached to this report. The
proposed golf simulation lab will be situated between the Irontek Incubator and the Universal space.

 As the Ironworks campus has evolved, the availability of off-street parking stalls has become an emerging issue.
According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed golf lab must be served by at least 53 off-
street parking stalls. As of right now, there are at least 53 off-street parking stalls on the Ironworks campus to
satisfy this code requirement. The completion of the YMCA in Ironworks South in 2017 and the continued build-
out of office space in Ironworks North has led to increased scrutiny of the current and expected parking shortage,
and this issue is currently being studied by Planning staff, the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO/SLATS),
and Hendricks officials. Numerous short- and medium-term solutions are being discussed.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have not submitted any comments or concerns.
 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on August 17, 2016 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend

approval of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the three conditions listed on the attached Resolution.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: August 17, 2016 Agenda Item: 3 File Number: CU-2016-04

Applicant: Jeff Whiteman Owner: Hendricks Commercial Prop. Location: 625-701 Third Street

Existing Zoning: M-2, General
Manufacturing District

Existing Land Use: Mixed Use Parcel Size: 19.6 Acres

Request Overview/Background Information:
Jeff Whiteman of Geronimo Hospitality Group has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor
entertainment venue with beer sales & consumption in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, for a proposed golf
simulation lab within the Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third Street. The proposed use is classified as
“Entertainment-Oriented Retail Sales/Service,” which requires a Conditional Use Permit to operate in an M-2, General
Manufacturing District. If the Conditional Use Permit is approved, the City Council is authorized to impose conditions it
deems necessary to reduce or minimize any potential adverse effects on surrounding properties.

Key Issues:
 The proposed golf simulation lab is approximately 8,000 square-feet in area, and will include digital simulators, a

putting surface, a driving range, and a lobby/bar area near the entrance from the new Ironworks “spine” roadway.
 The proposed facility will be open to the public, and will utilize a shared corridor with ADA access and bathrooms

as shown on the attached floor plan.
 The application and the overall floor plan for the central portion of Ironworks are also attached to this report. The

proposed golf simulation lab will be situated between the Irontek Incubator and the Universal space.
 As the Ironworks campus has evolved, the availability of off-street parking stalls has become an emerging issue.

According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed golf lab must be served by at least 53 off-
street parking stalls. As of right now, there are at least 53 off-street parking stalls on the Ironworks campus to
satisfy this code requirement. The completion of the YMCA in Ironworks South in 2017 and the continued build-
out of office space in Ironworks North has led to increased scrutiny of the current and expected parking shortage,
and this issue is currently being studied by Planning staff, the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO/SLATS),
and Hendricks officials. Numerous short- and medium-term solutions are being discussed.

 The City’s Review Agents have reviewed this application and have not submitted any comments or concerns.
 The attached Public Notice was published in the newspaper and posted on the City’s website. As of this writing,

Planning staff has not received any comments. All properties within 150 feet are Hendricks or City-owned.
 Public facilities and infrastructure exist in this area and the property receives the full range of municipal services.
 Findings of Fact

Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 The proposed golf simulation lab is situated within a massive adaptive reuse redevelopment,
which currently includes a variety of office and technology companies. The proposed golf lab
is not expected to create any significant noise, light, or other disruptions. The proposed golf
lab will provide a unique entertainment option for workers in and visitors to Ironworks, and will
not be detrimental to public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 The proposed golf simulation lab will not interfere with any adjacent or nearby uses. The
applicant indicated that the business will close by 10 PM each night, which is acceptable to
the Beloit Police Department. This closing time is reflected in the conditions below.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

 The proposed golf simulation lab is expected to serve as an attraction and amenity that will
increase property values in the Ironworks district and the nearby W. Grand Avenue/Fourth
Street business corridor.

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development
and improvement of the surrounding property;

 The surrounding area is fully developed.



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar
or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed golf simulation storefront will be compatible with the remainder of the
Ironworks campus and the materials will be subject to Architectural Review.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the conditional use.
g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and

 The establishment of the golf simulation lab is not expected to generate a significant increase
in traffic. As discussed above, numerous public and private efforts are underway to increase
the availability of parking in & around the Ironworks campus.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan recommends General Industrial uses for the subject property. The underlying zoning district
classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, as required by Section 66.1001(3) of Wisconsin Statutes.
Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability: (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact
both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines)

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor
entertainment venue with beer sales & consumption in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, for a golf simulation lab
within the Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third Street, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the
following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes an indoor golf simulation lab up to 8,000 square feet in floor area within
625 Third Street, Suite 100 of the Ironworks campus as shown on the floor plan submitted with the application.

2. Beer sales, possession, and consumption are allowed within the golf simulation lab, provided a beer license is
obtained and retained at all times. Beer sales & consumption shall end at 10 PM every night.

3. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission
and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively and allow accessory structures and uses that comply with and meet all of
the standards and requirements of the City of Beloit Municipal Code.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photos, Application, Floor Plans, & Public Notice.



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report



4.c CU-2016-04, Golf Simulator at Ironworks, 625-701 Third Street, Council Report



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report

RESOLUTION
AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW

AN OUTDOOR SEATING AREA WITH ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES
IN A C-2, NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL DISTRICT,

FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1028 MARY STREET

WHEREAS, the application of Bradley Sandmire of The Last Lap tavern for a
Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession, &
consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the
property located at 1028 Mary Street, having been considered by the City Council of the City of
Beloit, Wisconsin at a public hearing held for that purpose and due notice of said hearing having
been given by publication as appears by the Proof of Publication on file in the office of the City
Clerk.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City Council of the City of
Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin does hereby grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor
seating area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2,
Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1028 Mary Street in the City of
Beloit, for the following described premises:

Lots 19, 20, & 21, Block 3 of McGavocks Heights, City of Beloit, Rock County
Wisconsin. Said parcel contains 0.4649 acres, more or less.

As a condition of granting the Conditional Use Permit, the City Council does hereby
stipulate the following conditions and restrictions upon the Conditional Use, which are hereby
deemed necessary for the public interest:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes a fenced outdoor seating area no larger than
3,000 square feet, in the location shown on the applicant’s site sketch. Outdoor
entertainment/performances are prohibited in the outdoor seating area and all outdoor
music speakers shall be turned off at 10 PM.

2. Prior to use of the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural
Review Certificate and construct a wood privacy fence as proposed. The fence shall be
no more than 6 feet in height where it attaches to the tavern building, which will allow
adjustments for grade to occur at the bottom of the fence as it extends north. The fence
shall be at least 6 feet in height.

3. Prior to use of the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall stripe the existing asphalt
parking lot to identify at least 33 parking stalls, including 2 accessible stalls that share a
striped 8-foot access aisle.

4. Prior to use of the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall amend the liquor license for
the premises to include the outdoor seating area.

5. The outdoor seating area shall include marked exits, clear 36’’ exit pathways, and gates
with exit-only hardware. The Fire Inspector and Building Official will inspect the
completed outdoor seating area and establish a maximum occupancy, which shall be
posted inside the building and within the outdoor seating area.



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report

6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by
the Plan Commission and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The
Director of Planning & Building Services may approve minor changes administratively.

Adopted this 6th day of September, 2016.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

David F. Luebke, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Conditional Use Permit Application for the property located at 1028 Mary Street

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Bradley Sandmire has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor
sales, possession, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property
located at 1028 Mary Street.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
 The applicant owns The Last Lap tavern, and has proposed a fenced outdoor seating area to the northwest of the

tavern building as shown on the attached site sketch. The proposed outdoor area would be surrounded by a wood
privacy fence and would include emergency exits to the east and south. The privacy fence will be installed next to
the existing tavern and storage buildings, which will ensure that customers may only access the outdoor seating
area by entering the tavern and exiting the northern door into the fenced area. The fenced area will be
approximately 3,000 square feet in area. The fence is outside of the front setback area, and therefore is allowed
to be up to 8 feet in height.

 The proposed furniture within the outdoor seating area will consist of picnic tables with seating for 20-30
customers. Section 4-704 of the Zoning Ordinance states that outdoor seating areas in C-2 are only allowed if
reviewed and approved in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review procedures.

 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The subject
business is a neighborhood-scale tavern on a local street, and is part of a C-2 zoning district that runs along
Liberty Avenue/State Hwy 81. There is an auto-based business to the north of the subject property, and single-
family homes (zoned R-1B, Single-Family Residential) to the east. There are existing public housing units to the
south and west of the subject property. The attached Public Notice was sent to 10 nearby property owners.
Planning staff has not received any comments.

 According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant will need to provide at least 33 off-street
parking stalls. There is adequate paved area on the subject property to meet this requirement, but the existing
asphalt lot will need to be striped to identify the stalls and accessible stalls required by the Ordinance.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on August 17, 2016 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend
approval of the Conditional Use Permit, subject to the six conditions included on the attached Resolution.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the
City’s mission.):

 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it
will impact both the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and action on the proposed Resolution

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Resolution and Staff Report to the Plan Commission



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: August 17, 2016 Agenda Item: 4 File Number: CU-2016-05

Applicant: Bradley Sandmire Owner: The Last Lap Inc. Location: 1028 Mary Street

Existing Zoning: C-2, Neighborhood
Commercial District

Existing Land Use: Tavern Parcel Size: 0.46 Acre

Request Overview/Background Information:
Bradley Sandmire has filed an application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor
sales, possession, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property
located at 1028 Mary Street.

Key Issues:
 The applicant owns The Last Lap tavern, and has proposed a fenced outdoor seating area to the northwest of the

tavern building as shown on the attached site sketch.
 The proposed outdoor area would be surrounded by a wood privacy fence and would include emergency exits to

the east and south. The privacy fence will be installed next to the existing tavern and storage buildings, which will
ensure that customers may only access the outdoor seating area by entering the tavern and exiting the northern
door into the fenced area. The fenced area will be approximately 3,000 square feet in area. The fence is outside
of the front setback area, and therefore is allowed to be up to 8 feet in height.

 The proposed furniture within the outdoor seating area will consist of picnic tables with seating for 20-30
customers.

 Section 4-704 of the Zoning Ordinance states that outdoor seating areas in C-2 are only allowed if reviewed and
approved in accordance with the Conditional Use Permit review procedures.

 The application and site sketch are attached to this report.
 The attached Location and Zoning Map shows the location of the parcel involved in this application. The subject

business is a neighborhood-scale tavern on a local street, and is part of a C-2 zoning district that runs along
Liberty Avenue/State Hwy 81. There is an auto-based business to the north of the subject property, and single-
family homes (zoned R-1B, Single-Family Residential) to the east. There are existing public housing units to the
south and west of the subject property.

 The attached Public Notice was sent to 10 nearby property owners. Planning staff has not received any
comments.

 According to Section 8-103 of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant will need to provide at least 33 off-street
parking stalls. There is adequate paved area on the subject property to meet this requirement, but the existing
asphalt lot will need to be striped to identify the 9’ x 18’ stalls and accessible stalls required by the Ordinance.

 Findings of Fact
Based on Section 2-504 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Plan Commission shall make a recommendation based
on the following considerations:

a. Whether the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the conditional use will be detrimental to or
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare;

 Outdoor seating areas have become a ubiquitous feature of taverns in the City, and have not
caused any widespread or persistent problems.

 The applicant agreed to Planning staff’s request to locate the outdoor seating area on the
north side of the tavern, which will be away from the surrounding private and public dwellings
nearby.

b. Whether the conditional use will be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for purposes already permitted;

 Planning staff is recommending standard conditions of approval dealing with hours of
operation and noise that will ensure continued compatibility between the tavern and the
adjacent residential uses.

c. Whether the conditional use will substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood of the subject property;

 The 35-seat tavern is a longstanding component of this mixed use block, and the addition of
an outdoor seating area subject to time & noise limitations will not affect property values.

d. Whether the establishment of the conditional use will impede the normal and orderly development



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report

and improvement of the surrounding property;
 The surrounding area is fully developed.

e. Whether the exterior architectural design or site layout of the proposed conditional use is so dissimilar
or otherwise incompatible with existing or proposed development in the immediate neighborhood that
it will cause a depreciation in property values;

 The proposed outdoor seating area will be surrounded by a wood privacy fence, and
Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval that will require the applicant to
improve the existing parking lot prior to use.

f. Whether adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or other necessary facilities will be available to
serve the proposed use at the time of its occupancy or use;

 Adequate facilities and infrastructure are available to serve the proposed outdoor seating
area.

g. Whether adequate measures will be taken to minimize traffic congestion; and
 The proposed outdoor seating area is not expected to generate a significant increase in

traffic. Planning staff is recommending a condition of approval that will require the applicant to
stripe the existing parking lot in order to identify the 33 required parking stalls.

h. Whether the conditional use will comply with all applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.
 The conditional use will comply with all other applicable regulations of the Zoning Ordinance.

If the garbage & recycling containers are visible, an enclosure will be required.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Neighborhood Commercial uses for the subject property. This request and
the underlying C-2 zoning classification are consistent with this recommendation. Consideration of this request supports
City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – N/A

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating
area and outdoor sales, possession, & consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District,
for the property located at 1028 Mary Street, based on the above Findings of Fact and subject to the following conditions:

1. This Conditional Use Permit authorizes a fenced outdoor seating area no larger than 3,000 square feet, in the
location shown on the applicant’s site sketch. Outdoor entertainment/performances are prohibited in the outdoor
seating area and all outdoor music speakers shall be turned off at 10 PM.

2. Prior to use of the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall obtain an Architectural Review Certificate and
construct a wood privacy fence as proposed. The fence shall be no more than 6 feet in height where it attaches to
the tavern building, which will allow adjustments for grade to occur at the bottom of the fence as it extends north.

3. Prior to use of the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall stripe the existing asphalt parking lot to identify at
least 33 parking stalls, including 2 accessible stalls that share a striped 8-foot access aisle.

4. Prior to use of the outdoor seating area, the applicant shall amend the liquor license for the premises to include
the outdoor seating area.

5. The outdoor seating area shall include marked exits, clear 36’’ exit pathways, and gates with exit-only hardware.
The Fire Inspector and Building Official will inspect the completed outdoor seating area and establish a maximum
occupancy, which shall be posted inside the building and within the outdoor seating area.

6. Any major changes in the adopted conditions or use of the property shall be approved by the Plan Commission
and City Council by amending this Conditional Use Permit. The Director of Planning & Building Services may
approve minor changes administratively.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Photo, Site Sketch, Application, Public Notice, and Mailing List.



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report

View From Mary Street (East)

Approx. Seating Location



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report



4.d CU-2016-05, 1028 Mary Street, Last Lap Outdoor Seating, Council Report



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Monday, August 15, 2016

Presiding: David F. Luebke
Present: Sheila De Forest, Regina Hendrix, Kevin Leavy, Mark Preuschl, Marilyn Sloniker
Absent: Regina Dunkin

1. President Luebke called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. in the Forum at Beloit City Hall.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS

5. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION

6. CONSENT AGENDA

Councilors Preuschl and Leavy made a motion to adopt the consent Agenda as presented. Motion
carried.

a. The Minutes of the Regular meeting of August 1, 2016 were approved.
b. An application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor entertainment venue with beer sales &

consumption in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, for a proposed golf simulation lab within the
Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third Street was referred to Plan Commission. File 8074

c. An application for a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales,
possession & consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for
the property located at 1028 Mary Street was referred to Plan Commission. File 7374

d. An application for an amendment to a Planned Unit Development (PUD) for Hawk’s Ridge to allow
an additional 80 housing units, for property located at 1750 Gateway Boulevard was referred to Plan
Commission. File 8089

e. A resolution of the City Council accepting Petition for attachment for property located at 2028 E.
Ridge Road was accepted and referred to Plan Commission. File 8337

7. ORDINANCES - None

8. APPOINTMENTS - None

9. COUNCILOR ACTIVITIES AND UPCOMING EVENTS

 Councilor De Forest attended National Night Out and thanked the Beloit Police and Fire
Departments, the Rock County Sheriff’s Department and all of the visiting police departments who
came out for this event. She is speaking at the Trans Graduation, the construction training program
through Community Action this week. She is looking forward to attending the “Community
Conversation” on August 24

th
and thanked the group for setting that up. She’s excited for the “bike

across Wisconsin” event on August 27
th

at 5pm. Finally, the August 26
th

Music at Harry’s place will
include a “Welcome to our Town” reception to welcome Beloit College Students.

 Councilor Sloniker attended and was involved in the National Night Out and enjoyed the event. She
also attended and volunteered at the Street Dance.

 Councilor Preuschl attended National Night Out and a few of the block parties. He was thankful of
the outstanding job. He photographed the KUBB finals in Beloit on Friday evening. He has
volunteered to work with people at Grinnell Hall to offer a program called “what the tech” that will
assist people with their technology issues. He will be “walking with Walker” at Beckman Mill
tomorrow.



 Councilor Leavy echoed the National Night Out praise already given. He would love to have
something of this caliber on an annual level. His class reunion was at the Street Dance on Friday
night and he was pleased to see the classmates who had moved away and said that they were
amazed at the improvements they saw downtown.

 Councilor Hendrix welcomed many new freshman to Beloit College on August 15
th

and hopes they
come to the park on Friday for the welcome reception. This Friday, there will be a ribbon cutting for
the Emerson Apartments that have been converted back to dorms because of the need for housing.
Friday is the first home football game for the Beloit Purple Knights and she will be on the sidelines
coaching cheerleaders. The cheerleaders will be cheering on the cyclists coming through for the
“bike across Wisconsin” event on August 26

th
.

 President Luebke is pleased to hear the involvement of the councilors and all the wonderful events
that are taking place in Beloit and he applauded the servanthood of the councilors in the community.

10. CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION

a. Chief of Police, David Zibolski, gave a briefing on “Conversations with the Community” event to
be held Wednesday, August 24, 2016 at New Zion Baptist Church, 1905 Mound St. at 5:30pm.
In furtherance of the City of Beloit community policing strategy and with the support and input
from our newly formed Pastoral Advisory Team, a platform geared towards strengthening
community relationships, building trust, and educating the community members on a variety of
topics is taking place. Many of the topics will discuss police-community conflicts that, over time,
have diminished the very important relationship between police and the community. The Group
aims to reverse that trend and continue Beloit’s growth as a vibrant and sustainable community.
This first “conversation” will address traffic stops and include perspectives from the community
and police, legal parameters, suggested approaches, and general Q&A. The meeting will be
videotaped and placed on the City website for the benefit of other community members.

11. REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS

a. City Attorney, Elizabeth Krueger, presented a resolution setting a Return Date and Authorizing the
Issuance of a Summons for an Alcohol License Sanction Hearing for Casey’s Marketing Company,
d/b/a Casey’s General Store #3316. The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee at its June
14

th
, 2016 meeting recommended that the alcohol beverage license issued to Casey’s Marketing

Company d/b/a Casey’s General Store #3316, be suspended for 10 consecutive days. City
Ordinance 31.01 adopts Wisconsin State Statutes 125.12(1)-(3m) which, among other things,
requires that the City Council shall issue a summons signed by the City Clerk upon the filing of a
complaint seeking revocation or suspension of a license and present a complaint to the City Council.
The City Council has a hearing date of Tuesday, August 23

rd
at 6pm in the Forum at City Hall.

Councilors De Forest and Hendrix made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented. Motion
carried. File 8721

b. City Attorney, Elizabeth Krueger, presented a resolution setting a Return Date and Authorizing the
Issuance of a Summons for an Alcohol License Sanction Hearting for Pitchers Mound LTD LLC,
d/b/a Pitcher’s Mound. The Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee at its June 14

th
, 2016

meeting recommended that the alcohol beverage license that was approved, but not yet issued, to
Pitcher’s Mound Ltd LLC, d/b/a Pitcher’s Mound, be revoked for abandonment and/or non-use. City
Ordinance 31.01 adopts Wisconsin State Statutes 125.12(1)-(3m) which, among other things,
requires that the City Council shall issue a summons signed by the City Clerk upon the filing of a
complaint seeking revocation or suspension of a license and present a complaint to the City Council.
The City Council has a hearing date of Tuesday, August 23

rd
at 6pm in the Forum at City Hall.

Councilors Leavy and Preuschl made a motion to adopt the resolution as presented. Motion carried.
File 8721

12. Councilors Hendrix and Preuschl made a motion to adjourn at 7:20 p.m. Motion Carried.

______________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by City Council: September 6, 2016



PROCEEDINGS OF THE BELOIT CITY COUNCIL
Special Meeting
100 State Street, Beloit WI 53511
City Hall Forum – 7:00 p.m.
Tuesday, August 23, 2016

Presiding: President David F. Luebke
Present: Regina Dunkin, Regina Hendrix, Kevin Leavy, Mark Preuschl, Marilyn Sloniker
Absent: Sheila De Forest
Advisory: Attorney Brooke Joos, appeared as independent counsel for the City Council

1. President Luebke called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

2. City Attorney, Elizabeth Krueger, appearing on behalf of the City of Beloit, presented a recommendation
from the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee that the Alcohol Beverage License for Casey’s
Marketing Company, d/b/a Casey General Store #3316, 2350 Cranston Road, Emma Monheim, agent
be suspended for 10 consecutive days.

Attorney David Moore, appearing on behalf of the respondent Casey’s Marketing Company, admitted to
the facts of the complaint. The parties were asked to argue their respective positions to the Council to
determine the appropriate sanction.

Attorney Krueger recommended a 10-day suspension which was the recommendation of the ABLCC.
She indicated that the 10-day suspension was consistent with the past practice of the city.

Attorney David Moore explained that he would not be arguing the facts of the complaint, but would rather
explain the series of events that have led to these very frustrating and disappointing violations. Mr.
Moore introduced with him the store agent, Emma Monheim and the store supervisor, Julie Colden. He
explained that a change in personnel during this period complicated the situation. Casey’s corporation is
a Midwestern chain of stores with headquarters in Ankeny, Iowa, and they have made it clear that they
take these violations very serious and in this case, have dismissed the employees who did not comply
with the rules and policy within their organization. Mr. Moore handed out packets of material to the
Councilors for reference and one of them included a 3-page letter that details the policy and procedures
for the sale of alcohol within their company. He wanted to be clear that this letter which was given to
Captain Dan Risse after the first violation was not a list of new compliance changes to be implemented
as indicated in the minutes of the June committee meeting. Casey’s has not implemented changes to
their policy, however, they reiterated via this letter the training and expectations of all employees in the
corporation. He reviewed that document with the Councilors. Mr. Moore also explained that Casey’s has
registers that allow for Driver’s Licenses and ID’s to be scanned for the DOB and when using an
alternative ID, must enter a Date of Birth for age verification. In Casey’s attempt to ensure that the policy
is strictly enforced, they have a no-tolerance policy in that those who violate the expectations to scan
anyone appearing under 40 and who sells alcohol to minors will be terminated. All employees were
retrained after the first offense and asked to sign a form stating they understand the policy and
consequences. The store supervisor is fairly certain that a false date was entered in this underage sale.
She reiterated that all employees participate in the “bars program” that runs internal checks for the same
purposes as well as being trained on how to refuse a sale if someone doesn’t have an adequate ID.
Clerks are also all required to take the safe server program as well. Councilors asked questions of
Attorney Moore and the store supervisor.

3. Councilors Leavy and Dunkin made a motion to adjourn into closed session at 6:30pm pursuant to
§19.85 (1)(a), Wis. Stats. for deliberations regarding the matter identified in #2 which was the subject of
a quasi-judicial hearing. Motion carried 6-0. Councilors Dunkin and Sloniker made a motion to move out
of closed session at 6:58pm. Motion carried. Councilors Leavy and Preuschl made a motion to move
back into open session. Attorney Joos explained that the decision the council is making this evening is to
be made based solely on the information presented by Attorney Krueger in the complaint and the



information provided by Attorney Moore. Council Leavy made a motion to suspend for 30 days because
of the time frame that these violations occurred in and the fact that these matters are taken very
seriously by the Council. Motion failed for lack of a second. Councilors Dunkin and Preuschl made a
motion to suspend the license for the recommended 10 days to be effective immediately. Councilor
Leavy explained that he will support the 10 day suspension but wants to be clear that he feels this is a
severe violation and he hopes that they understand that as well. Motion Carried. File 8721

4. City Attorney, Elizabeth Krueger, appearing on behalf of the City of Beloit, presented a recommendation
from the Alcohol Beverage License Control Committee that the Alcohol Beverage License for Pitcher’s
Mound LTD LLC, d/b/a Pitcher’s Mound, 2745 Prairie Avenue, Robert L Lewis, Agent be revoked for
abandonment and/or non-use. Attorney Krueger filed an Affidavit of Service with the Clerk indicating that
Agent Robert Lewis was properly served with the Summons and Complaint. No one representing
Pitcher’s Mound appeared before the Council. Attorney Krueger requested that the Council consider the
facts outlined in the complaint sufficient to revoke the license. Councilors Leavy and Sloniker made a
motion to revoke the license as recommended. Motion carried. File 8721

5. Councilors Leavy and Dunkin made a motion to adjourn at 7:08 p.m. Motion carried.

______________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

www.beloitwi.gov
Date approved by City Council: September 6, 2016



RPB-2016-07, ATC Easement, 3015 Cranston Road, CC Referral

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: American Transmission Company Transmission Line Easement at 3015 Cranston Road – Council Referral to
the Plan Commission

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
The American Transmission Company (ATC) has requested that a utility easement be established along the north side of
the city-owned property located at 3015 Cranston Road and directly south of the Union Pacific Railroad right-of-way.

Key Issues:
 ATC has requested this easement to allow the construction of high-voltage transmission lines on the property.
 The proposed easement’s total land area is approximately 33,692 sq. ft.
 If granted the easement, ATC plans to install two monopole transmission structures with a maximum height of 130

ft.
 The subject property includes a substantial floodplain area and has no street frontage.

Conformance to Strategic Plan:
 Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels - N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature - N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems - N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently - N/A

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the September 7, 2016 meeting.
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for possible action on September 19, 2016.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
ATC will pay the City of Beloit a total of $41,150.00 for the easement, appraisal wavers, and tree and brush clearing
duties.

Attachments:
Location & Zoning Map and Easement with Exhibits.



RPB-2016-07, ATC Easement, 3015 Cranston Road, CC Referral



RPB-2016-07, ATC Easement, 3015 Cranston Road, CC Referral



RPB-2016-07, ATC Easement, 3015 Cranston Road, CC Referral



RPB-2016-07, ATC Easement, 3015 Cranston Road, CC Referral



RPB-2016-07, ATC Easement, 3015 Cranston Road, CC Referral



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: WG Condominiums, Walnut Grove Plat #2 (2260 and 2265 Walnut Street) – Council Referral to the Plan
Commission

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter(s): Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
RH Batterman, on behalf of Intrinsic I LLC, has submitted the attached Condominium Plat, which is official known as WG
Condominiums, for the properties located at 2260 and 2265 Walnut Street.

Key Issues:
 The proposed Condo Plat, a part of the original Walnut Grove Plat #2, includes the construction of 6 duplex condo

units on Lot 7 and 6 duplex condo units on Lot 8 for a total of 12 units.
 This project was originally approved and zoned as a Planned Unit Development (PUD) in 2004, and the PUD

Resolution authorized up to 65 dwelling units.
 An amended PUD Master Land Use Plan was approved in 2005 that allowed the developer to have 20-foot front-

yard setbacks for nine buildings instead of the 30-foot setback for all buildings approved in the original PUD
buildings. The amended PUD also changed the total allowed dwelling units to 59 units instead of the originally
approved 65 units.

 The developer has completed the construction of 24 units to date with two more units currently under
construction. If approved, the new buildings proposed will bring the total number of units to 38.

Conformance to Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map recommends Single-Family Residential - Urban as the most appropriate
use for the subject property. The developer’s existing and proposed one or two unit condo buildings are in conformance
with this land use recommendation.

Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The demand for high quality

housing is increasing in Beloit and the construction of new units in Walnut Grove will help meet that need.

Action required/Recommendation:
 Referral to the Plan Commission for the September 7, 2016 meeting.
 This item will most likely return to the City Council for possible action on September 19, 2016.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Proposed Plat, Application, and 2005 PUD Resolution.













ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ATTACHING THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT
2028 E RIDGE ROAD TO THE CITY OF BELOIT

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, do ordain as follows:

Section 1. Territory Attached. In accordance with Section 66.0307 of Wisconsin
Statutes, the Cooperative Boundary Agreement between the City of Beloit and the Town of
Turtle, and the Petition for Attachment filed by Steve Manteufel with the City Clerk on the 21st

day of June, 2016, signed by all of the owners of real property of the following described
property in the Town of Turtle, Rock County, Wisconsin, the following territory is attached to
the City of Beloit, Wisconsin:

Lot 116 of a re-subdivision of Outlot A and Lots 34 and 54 of Turtle Ridge, being
also a part of the S.W. ¼ of Section 30, T. 1 N., R. 13 E., of the 4th P.M., Turtle
Township, Rock County, Wisconsin. Further described as follows: Beginning at
the most Northerly corner of Lot 116, aforesaid; thence South 37° 47’ 00” East
along the Northeasterly line of said Lot and its extension, 313.0 feet more or less to
the Southeasterly right of way line of Milwaukee Road; thence South 52° 13’ 00”
West 94.29 feet along said right of way line; thence North 37° 47’ 00” West 379.0
feet more or less along the Southwesterly line of said Lot 116 and its extension to
the Northwesterly right of way line of East Ridge Road; thence North 52° 13’ 00”
East 94.29 feet along said Northwesterly right of way line; thence South 37° 47’
00” East 66.00 feet to the place of beginning. Containing 35,736 square feet more
or less (a/k/a 2028 East Ridge Road).

Section 2. Effect of Attachment. From and after the date of this Ordinance the territory
described in Section 1 shall be part of the City of Beloit for any and all purposes provided by law
and all persons coming or residing within such territory shall be subject to all Ordinances, rules,
and regulations governing the City of Beloit.

Section 3. Payment to Town of Turtle. Since the City of Beloit has entered into a
Boundary Agreement with the Town of Turtle, the City of Beloit does not have to pay any
additional monies to the Town of Turtle other than the monies already agreed to in the Boundary
Agreement pursuant to Section 66.0217(14) of Wisconsin Statutes.

Section 4. Temporary Zoning Classification. A) The territory attached to the City of
Beloit by this Ordinance is temporarily designated to be part of the following district of the City
for zoning purposes and subject to all provisions of Chapter 19 of the Code of General
Ordinances of the City of Beloit, entitled “The City of Beloit Zoning Ordinance” relating to such
district classifications and to zoning in the City: R-1A, Single-Family Residential District.

Page 1 of 2



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report

B) The boundaries of these designated districts are established as shown on the map filed in the
office of the City Clerk. C) The Plan Commission is directed to initiate an amendment to the
Zoning Ordinance not later than 30 days from the effective date of this Ordinance setting forth a
permanent classification and regulations for the zoning of the attached area and to submit its
recommendations to the City Council.

Section 5. Ward Designation. The territory described in Section 1 of this Ordinance is
hereby made a part of the Twenty-second (22nd) Ward of the City of Beloit, subject to the
Ordinances, rules, and regulations of the City, governing ward districts.

Section 6. Severability. If any provision of this Ordinance is invalid or
unconstitutional, or if the application of this to any person or circumstance is invalid or
unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the other provisions or
applications of this Ordinance, which can be given effect without the invalid or unconstitutional
provision or application.

Section 7. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its
passage and publication.

Adopted this _______ day of _____________, 2016.

BELOIT CITY COUNCIL

David F. Luebke, Council President

ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

Published this day of , 2016.

Effective this day of , 2016.

01-611100-5231-_____



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Attachment of 2028 East Ridge Road to the City of Beloit from the Town of Turtle

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter: Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
Steve Manteufel has submitted a petition for attachment to the City of Beloit for his property located at 2028 E. Ridge Road in
the Turtle Ridge Island in the Town of Turtle, along with the attached Plat showing the territory to be attached. The applicant
has requested a zoning district classification of R-1A, Single-Family Residential.

Key Issues:
 A failing septic system is the impetus for this attachment request. This property is located within the 208 Sewer

Service Area and the City of Beloit extended sanitary sewer service to this area several years ago. The Boundary
Agreement with the Town of Turtle governs this property, stating “if the sanitary septic system on a property in a
Town island fails and the Rock County Health Department determines that the septic system cannot be repaired or
replaced, the property owner may petition the City of Beloit to attach to the City for the purpose of obtaining City
sewer service.”

 The Wisconsin Department of Administration (DOA) does not need to review this attachment, as the DOA does not
review attachments pursuant to a boundary agreement [Wis. Stat. § 66.0307(10)].

 As detailed in the attached letter, the Rock County Health Department has been notified of the failing septic system
and supports connections to public sewer service systems when one is available.

 The attachment includes land in both the Milwaukee Road right-of-way and the Ridge Road right-of-way as
requested by the City Engineer.

 The Plan Commission reviewed this item on August 17, 2016 and voted unanimously (6-0) to recommend approval
of this request.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses for this property. This land use
category is intended for existing and planned groupings of single-family detached residences that are served by public
sanitary sewer and water systems. This proposed attachment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Attachment of the properties within the Town of Turtle Boundary

Adjustment Area will reduce dependence upon fossil fuels by allowing for more efficient and consistent public
services such as police and fire protection, refuse collection, and snow removal.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – A reduction in the number of septic

systems located in densely populated areas will reduce groundwater contamination.
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The provision of sanitary sewer

service will satisfy the owner’s need for a healthy, sanitary dwelling.

Action required/Recommendation:
 City Council consideration and 1

st
and 2

nd
readings of the proposed Ordinance.

 The property owner has requested that the City Council execute both the 1
st

and 2
nd

readings of the proposed
Ordinance at the September 6, 2016 meeting in order to allow him to finalize the sale of his property on September
13, 2016.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Ordinance, Staff Report to the Plan Commission, Rock County Health Department Letter



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report

CITY OF BELOIT
REPORT TO THE BELOIT CITY PLAN COMMISSION

Meeting Date: August 17, 2016 Agenda Item: 7 File Number: ANX-2009-01

Applicant: Steve Manteufel Owner: Steve Manteufel Location: 2028 E Ridge Road, Town
of Turtle

Existing Zoning: R1, Urban
Residential District (Town Zoning)

Existing Land Use: Single-Family
Dwelling

Parcel Size: 35,736 Square Feet

Request Overview/Background Information:
Steve Manteufel has requested attachment to the City of Beloit for his property located at 2028 E. Ridge Road in the Turtle
Ridge Island in the Town of Turtle, along with the attached Plat showing the territory to be attached. The applicant has
requested a zoning district classification of R-1A, Single-Family Residential.

A failing septic system is the impetus for this attachment request. This property is located within the 208 Sewer Service Area
and the City of Beloit extended sanitary sewer service to this area several years ago. This property is not located within the
Boundary Adjustment Area designated in the Cooperative Boundary Plan between the City of Beloit and the Town of Turtle.
However, the Boundary Agreement governs this property, stating “if the sanitary septic system on a property in a Town island
fails and the Rock County Health Department determines that the septic system cannot be repaired or replaced, the property
owner may petition the City of Beloit to attach to the City for the purpose of obtaining City sewer service.”

Key Issues:
 The City Council is expected to adopt a Resolution accepting this Petition for Attachment on August 15, 2016.
 The Wisconsin Department of Administration (DOA) does not need to review this attachment, as the DOA does not

review attachments pursuant to a boundary agreement [Wis. Stat. § 66.0307(10)].
 The Rock County Health Department has been notified of the failing septic system and supports connections to

public sewer service systems when one is available.
 The subject property is located in the 208 Water Quality Plan area and sanitary sewer is readily available from the

City.
 The attached Plat shows the location of the subject property between Milwaukee Road and East Ridge Road.

o At the request of the City Engineer, ROW from both Milwaukee Road and East Ridge Road has been
included on the Plat.

 The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of this property and the zoning of the surrounding area. The
adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

o North: R1, Urban Residential District, Single-Family Dwelling (Town of Turtle)
o South: R-3, Low-Density Multifamily District, Vacant/Condos
o East: R1, Urban Residential District, Single-Family Dwelling (Town of Turtle)
o West: R1, Urban Residential District, Single-Family Dwelling (Town of Turtle)

 When property is attached to the City, a temporary zoning classification must be assigned until an Ordinance
approving a Zoning Map Amendment is adopted by the City Council. Staff recommends that the temporary zoning
classification for this property be R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, because of the size, location, and
surrounding land uses of the property. A Zoning Map Amendment with a recommendation for a permanent zoning
classification will be processed by staff in the near future.

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan:
The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends Single-Family Residential – Urban uses for this property. This land use
category is intended for existing and planned groupings of single-family detached residences that are served by public
sanitary sewer and water systems. This proposed attachment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

Consideration of this request supports City of Beloit Strategic Goal #5.

Sustainability:
 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels – Attachment of the properties within the Town of Turtle islands will reduce

dependence upon fossil fuels by allowing for more efficient and consistent public services such as police and fire
protection, refuse collection, and snow removal.

 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature – N/A



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report

 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems – A reduction in the number of septic
systems located in densely populated areas, such as the Town of Turtle islands, will reduce groundwater
contamination.

 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently – The provision of sanitary sewer
service will satisfy the owner’s need for a healthy, sanitary dwelling.

Staff Recommendation:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the Petition for Attachment to the City of Beloit for the
property located at 2028 E. Ridge Road in the Town of Turtle and assignment of a temporary zoning district classification of
R-1A, Single-Family Residential.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact: N/A

Attachments: Location & Zoning Map, Petition for Attachment, and Plat.



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report



7a ANX-2016-01, 2028 E Ridge Road, Attachment from TOT, Council Report



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE
OF 106 BLUFF STREET FROM JOHN WERGIN

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, hereby resolves that the

attached offer to purchase to John Wergin, dated August 5, 2016, to purchase the property at

106 Bluff Street be, and is hereby accepted and approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager of the City of Beloit be, and is hereby,

authorized to execute the offer to purchase on behalf of the City of Beloit.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager be, and is hereby, authorized to

execute any other documents necessary to carry out the terms and conditions of this

resolution.

Adopted this 6th day of September, 2016.

City Council of the City of Beloit

David F. Luebke, President
Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

tdh\resolution\106 Bluff Street =res=20160814 (16-1087)



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Resolution Approving Offer to Purchase the Vacant Lot located at 106 Bluff Street from John Wergin

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter: Julie Christensen Department: Community Development

Overview/Background Information:
106 Bluff is a vacant lot located at the northwest corner of Bluff Street and Shirland Avenue (see Location Map). It was originally
owned by the City. It was declared as surplus in 2003 and made available for sale. The lot was sold to John Wergin in December,
2014. His intention was to build a house on the property.

Key Issues (maximum of 5):
1. In December 2014, the City sold the lot located at 106 Bluff Street to John Wergin subject to the following conditions:

 The Buyer (John Wergin) must construct a single-family residential building in keeping with the character of the
neighborhood and in compliance with all municipal ordinances, including but not limited to, all zoning and planning
ordinances with an assessed value of not less than $75,000.

 Buyer must grant to Seller (City) a right of first refusal to purchase the property. Seller may execute its right of first refusal
if (a) Buyer lists the property for sale without having first constructed a residential building on the property listed for sale;
or (b) Buyer fails to build a residential building on the lot, as contemplated by this Counter-Offer, within 18 months of
closing.

 If Seller exercises its right of first refusal, the purchase price shall be $500.

2. Earlier this year, John Wergin contacted the City about the lot located at 106 Bluff Street. He indicated that he is no longer
interested in owning the property or constructing a house on this lot. The City Attorney prepared the attached Offer to
Purchase which is contingent upon City Council approval and the Seller (John Wergin) paying all costs of providing evidence of
title and all closing costs and fees. The purchase price is $500.

3. 106 Bluff Street is an odd-shaped parcel, 34,194 square feet in size. The Community Development Department is interested in
dividing off the portion of this lot located adjacent to the intersection and installing a “Bluff Street Historic District” sign. The
remaining land would be available to sell to another buyer. The sign would be installed on the existing sign posts (see photo).

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):
Approval of this project would conform with Goal #5’s stated purpose of applying sound, sustainable practices to promote a high
quality community through historic preservation, community revitalization and new development.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both the
built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A

Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently This purchase would allow us to make the
lot available to another buyer who may develop it and will allow us the ability to make visitors more aware of the Bluff
Street Historic District.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:
Recommendation to Council to approve resolution authorizing City Manager to execute the Offer to Purchase.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:
Funds are available in the CIP Acquisition Account to purchase this property.

Attachments:
Resolution, Location Map, Offer to Purchase, and Photo of Sign Posts

























Photo of Existing Sign Posts
Intersection of Shirland Avenue and Bluff Street



QB\41218211.1

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE SALE OF APPROXIMATELY
$13,450,000 WATER SYSTEM REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2016C

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin (the "City") deems it to be
necessary, desirable and in the best interest of the City to refund the outstanding maturities of the
City's Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2007, dated January 24, 2007 (the
"Refunded Obligations") for the purpose of achieving debt service cost savings; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City hereby finds and determines that water system
revenue bonds in an amount of approximately $13,450,000 should be issued for the purpose of
refunding the Refunded Obligations pursuant to Section 66.0621, Wisconsin Statutes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City that:

Section 1. Issuance of the Bonds. The City shall issue bonds designated "Water System
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C" (the "Bonds") in an amount of approximately
$13,450,000 for the purpose above specified.

Section 2. Sale of the Bonds. The City Council hereby authorizes and directs that the
Bonds be offered for public sale. At a subsequent meeting, the City Council shall consider such
bids for the Bonds as may have been received and take action thereon.

Section 3. Notice of Sale. The City Clerk (in consultation with the City's financial
advisor, Ehlers & Associates, Inc. ("Ehlers")) is hereby authorized and directed to cause the sale
of the Bonds to be publicized at such times and in such manner as the City Clerk may determine
and to cause copies of a complete, official Notice of Sale and other pertinent data to be
forwarded to interested bidders as the City Clerk may determine.

Section 4. Official Statement. The City Clerk (in consultation with Ehlers) shall also
cause an Official Statement to be prepared and distributed. The appropriate City officials shall
determine when the Official Statement is final for purposes of Securities and Exchange
Commission Rule 15c2-12 and shall certify said Statement, such certification to constitute full
authorization of such Statement under this resolution.

Section 5. Award of the Bonds. Following receipt of bids for the Bonds, the City
Council shall consider taking further action to provide the details of the Bonds and to award the
Bonds to the lowest responsible bidder therefor.



-2-
QB\41218211.1

Section 6. Conflicting Resolutions; Severability; Effective Date. All prior resolutions,
rules or other actions of the City Council or any parts thereof in conflict with the provisions
hereof shall be, and the same are, hereby rescinded insofar as the same may so conflict. In the
event that any one or more provisions hereof shall for any reason be held to be illegal or invalid,
such illegality or invalidity shall not affect any other provisions hereof. The foregoing shall take
effect immediately upon adoption and approval in the manner provided by law.

Adopted and recorded September 6, 2016.

_____________________________
David F. Luebke
City Council President

ATTEST:

_____________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler
City Clerk

(SEAL)



RESOLUTION DENYING PETITION TO REMOVE THE
PUBLIC SIDEWALK ADJACENT TO 1650 RITSHER STREET

WHEREAS, Joseph and Jeanette Hansen own the rental property at 1650 Ritsher Street in the
City of Beloit and have petitioned the Council to remove the public sidewalk adjacent to this address;
and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit Municipal Code requires the City Council to approve requests to
remove sidewalk that was constructed in the public right of way as an easement for pedestrian travel;
and

WHEREAS, city ordinance requires sidewalks in all new subdivisions to provide safe walking
locations in the neighborhoods; and

WHEREAS, the Engineering Division encourages the closing of gaps in sidewalks to complete the
connectivity of pedestrians within neighborhoods, not the removal of public sidewalks; and

WHEREAS, this property location is less than a block from Converse School and, for the health,
safety and welfare of the students and other pedestrians, this sidewalk should not be removed.

WHEREAS, the Engineering Division has reviewed this request and recommends denial of the
petition for the reasons stated herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Beloit does hereby deny
the petition of Joseph and Jeanette Hansen to remove the public sidewalk at 1650 Ritsher Street.

Dated at Beloit, Wisconsin this 6th day of September, 2016.

City Council of the City of Beloit

David F. Luebke, President
ATTEST:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic: Petition filed by Joseph and Jeanette Hansen to remove public sidewalk at 1650 Ritsher Street

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter: Greg Boysen, Public Works Director Department: Public Works/Engineering

Overview/Background Information:
The owners of the property at 1650 Ritsher, Joseph and Jeanette Hansen, have petitioned the City Council to remove the public
sidewalk in front of their rental property. The Hansen’s are currently under an order to repair the sidewalk in that location due to
hazardous conditions. The Engineering Division of the Department of Public Works has reviewed the Hansen’s request. The
Engineering Division is supportive of the City ordinances and policies that require sidewalks for the safety of pedestrian travel.

Property owners within 200 feet have been notified of the Hansen’s petition and the September 6, 2016 council meeting where the
item will be considered. The City did receive comment from the School District wherein Superintendent Dr. Tom Johnson indicated
the District’s opposition to the removal of the sidewalk. The letter from the School District is attached to this report.

In this instance, the sidewalk that is requested to be removed is less than a block from Converse Elementary School and removal of
the sidewalk would not promote the health, safety and welfare of pedestrian travel, particularly small children. The Engineering
Division encourages connectivity of sidewalks by bridging the gaps of properties without sidewalks rather than their removal. The
Engineering Division’s recommendation is to deny the petition requesting the removal of the sidewalk adjacent to 1650 be denied.

Key Issues:
1. The Beloit Municipal Code requires the City Council to consider requests for the removal of sidewalks constructed in the public

right of way as an easement for pedestrian travel.
2. Joseph and Jeanette Hansen have petitioned the City Council for the removal of sidewalk adjacent to their rental property

located at 1650 Ritsher.
3. Sidewalks are required in all new subdivisions to provide safe walking locations in the neighborhoods.
4. Engineering encourages the closing of gaps in sidewalks to complete the connectivity of pedestrians within neighborhoods;

not removing public sidewalks.
5. This location is less than a block from Converse School and for the safety of the students this sidewalk should not be removed

and the gap to the south (2003 Poff St) should have sidewalk installed to complete the connectivity to the school (See
attached Existing Sidewalk Conditions Map)

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):
As an eco-municipality, focus on the sustainable stewardship of City resources, services and infrastructure; to protect both our built
and natural environment and enhance the quality of life for current and future generations.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels. Walking more instead of driving would help reduce dependence on fossil fuels.
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently Keeping the sidewalk in place allows for

the safe movement of pedestrians in the neighborhood.

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:
Staff recommends denying the petition for removal of the public sidewalk at 1650 Ritsher Street.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

Attachments:
Petition documents filed by Joseph and Jeannette Hansen, owner of the rental property at 1650 Ritsher
Sidewalk Location Map
Resolution



Krueger, Elizabeth

Subject: FW: Request to vacate sidewalk

Attachments: 1650 Ritsher.jpg; 1650 Ritsher front.jpg; 1650 Ritsher 2.jpg; 1650 No curb cut view.jpg; 

1650 adjacent property.jpg; 1650 adjacent property no sidewalks.jpg

 

 

From: Jeanette Hansen [mailto:jhansen608@msn.com]  

Sent: Thursday, August 11, 2016 2:24 PM 
To: Stottler, Lorena 

Subject: FW: Request to vacate sidewalk 

 

Councilor Luebke asked me to forward this on to you. 

 

Thanks!! 

 

Jeanette Hansen 

 

Sent from Mail for Windows 10 

 

From: Jeanette Hansen 

Sent: Wednesday, August 10, 2016 9:17 PM 

To: slonikerm@beloitwi.gov 

Subject: FW: Request to vacate sidewalk 

 

 

From: jhansen608@msn.com 

To: lubeked@beloitwi.gov; leavyk@beloitwi.gov; deforests@beloitwi.gov; dunkinr@beloitwi.gov; 

hendrixr@beloitwi.gov; preuschlm@beloitwi.gov; slinikerm@beloitwi.gov 

Subject: Request to vacate sidewalk 

Date: Wed, 10 Aug 2016 20:52:29 -0500 

Dear City Council, 

 

 

We are requesting your authorization to remove the sidewalk at 1650 Ritsher St. Beloit, WI 

 

The large terrace trees have cracked and raised the sidewalk several inches. It is inevitable that this will happen 

again if we have the sidewalk repaired. It would be an expense to the city and not aesthetically appealing to 

have the large, mature terrace trees removed.  

 

The sidewalk in front of the house  ends at the adjacent property, not at the street. As seen in the attached 

Google Earth photos there are no sidewalks across the street, no curb cuts at any of the corners at the cross 

street, and no sidewalk on the school side of the next block, or on the properties located to the west of the cross 

street.  It would be more cost effective and aesthetically pleasing to remove the sidewalk and not damage the 

trees by replacing the sidewalk to nowhere, that no one uses. 

 



Our intended repair is to remove the damaged sidewalk and return the sidewalk area to sod, like the neighboring 

property. 

 

We contacted the city engineering department, and they referred us to you for a decision. 

 

If you need any further information, or have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Joseph & Jeanette Hansen 

2516 Clifcorn Drive 

Beloit, WI 53511 

608-365-8427 

















RI
TS

HE
R 

ST

TO
WN

LIN
E A

V

POFF ST

HOUSE ST

SU
N 

VA
LL

EY
 D

R

DE
LL

 D
R

CLEORA DR

WILSON ST

MA
RY

 ST

MADISON RD

WHIPPLE ST

DI
VIS

IO
N 

ST

WHIPPLE ST

1602

1520

1650

1531

1942 1850
2200

1715

2156

2210

1531

2200

1402

2260

2010

1928

1611

1451

1575

1509

1567

1503 1502

1440

1600

1432

1447

1525
1524

1822

1565

1836

1436

2132

1847

2128 2120

1953

1954

1905

1902

1447

1658

2003

1659

1647

1610

1618

2102

2137

19211945

1912

1939 1929

1944 1936 1928 1920

1915

2010

1556

1617

1822

1609

16021601

1610

1821

1553

1616

1626

1650

1532

15481547

1540

1651

1541

1754

2117

2116

1722

1738

1814

1730

1822

1806

1762

1716

1755

1723

1739

1815

1821

1715

1747

1807

1763

1731

1715

1723

1731

1739

1747

1755

1763

1805

1815

1823

1746

1453

1814

1806

1754

1762

1738

1746

1730

1722

1714

1822

17062121 2113

1764

1750

1728

1736

1806

1758

1714

1722

1814

1742

1813

1749

1763

1735

1713

1721

1805

1727

1741

1757

1844

1721

1715

1729

1735

1807

1757

1743

1749

1815

1801

1814

1806

1764

1758

1750

1742

1736

1728

1722

1714

1850

1714

1810

1822

1804

1750

1732

1720

1762

1738

1726

1744

1756

1816

1704190919171707

1849

1843

1855

1708194319491955

1531

1854

1848

1842

2003200920172023

1605

1611

1822

1547

1555

1661

1449

1561

1617

1623

1629

1635

1645

1649

1653

18511861

1811

1763

1821

1805

1709

1757

1713

1719

1817

1725

1823

1731

1829

1735

1833

1741

1839

1747

1845

1751

1860

1443

1851

1540

1443

K
Existing Sidewalk
No Sidewalk Exist
1650 Ritsher St.
Parcels

Existing Sidewalk Conditions
0 200 400100

Feet



tdh\files\16-1152\Res = Crossing Guard Agr 20160830 (2016-2019)

RESOLUTION APPROVING
AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN

THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT AND THE CITY OF BELOIT
FOR ADULT SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, does hereby find that the

intergovernmental agreement is in the best interests of the City of Beloit and hereby approves

the attached “INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT

AND THE CITY OF BELOIT FOR ADULT SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS” and that the City Manager is

hereby authorized to execute said intergovernmental agreement on behalf of the City of Beloit

and to do all other things necessary and appropriate to implement and carry out the provisions

thereof.

Adopted this 6th day of September, 2016.

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

David F. Luebke, President

Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic:
RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SCHOOL
DISTRICT OF BELOIT AND THE CITY OF BELOIT FOR ADULT SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter: Chief David Zibolski/Elizabeth A. Krueger Department: Police Department/Attorney

Overview/Background Information:

The attached intergovernmental agreement is a continuation of the collaborative efforts between the City of Beloit and
the School District of Beloit for the provision of adult crossing guards and keeping our children safe walking to or
around schools. The prior IGA expired and is due for renewal. The IGA provides for a one-year agreement with two
automatic annual renewal periods. The maximum financial contribution for the City is $47,000 per year.

Key Issues:

1. The City of Beloit plays a role for providing for the safe movement of students near the schools.

2. The School District of Beloit has agreed to manage the crossing guards.

3. The City and the School District will work collaboratively to determine the most prudent and effective locations
of the crossing guards.

4. The IGA limits the direct financial impact to $47,000/year.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Communicate and partner with other jurisdictions and organizations to coordinate effective and efficient service
delivery and stimulate regional prosperity.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:

Staff of both the City and the School District have reviewed the IGA and are recommending approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

$47,000/year direct financial contribution

Attachments:

Agreement
Resolution

20160830



CA File Number: 16-1152 Page 1 of 4 Adult Crossing Guard Agreement

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT AND THE CITY OF BELOIT

FOR ADULT SCHOOL CROSSING GUARDS

This Agreement effective this 1st day of July 2016, by and between the City of Beloit, Wisconsin, a
municipal corporation, 100 State Street, Beloit, Wisconsin (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and the
School District of Beloit, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Beloit, Wisconsin (hereinafter referred to as “School
District”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the School District of Beloit currently appoints adult school crossing guards; and

WHEREAS, section 120.13(31), Wis. Stats., authorizes the School Board of the School District of Beloit to

adopt a resolution, subject to approval of the Beloit City Council, to provide for the appointment of

adult school crossing guards; and

WHEREAS, the School Board of the School District of Beloit has adopted a resolution providing for

appointment of adult school crossing guards by the School District of Beloit and the Beloit City Council

has approved that resolution; and

WHEREAS, the City of Beloit and the School District of Beloit agree that it is in the best financial interest

of the citizens of Beloit that the School District appoint the adult school crossing guards for the

protection of persons crossing streets and highways in the vicinity of the schools; and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that the School District will appoint adult school crossing guards on

the following terms and conditions.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants and promises contained
herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which they acknowledge, the
Parties hereby enter into this Intergovernmental Agreement pursuant to section 66.0301, Wis. Stats as
follows:

1. INITIAL TERM. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for the 2016-2017 school year and
shall commence as of July 1, 2016 and continue until June 30, 2017.

2. RENEWAL TERMS(S). This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for two successive one-
year terms from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019, unless either party shall
give notice of its election not to renew this Agreement.

3. METHOD OF TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement of the
parties or by either party upon sixty (60) days’ prior notice to the other. Any termination notice or



CA File Number: 16-1152 Page 2 of 4 Adult Crossing Guard Agreement

intent not to renew this Agreement shall be made in writing and delivered via certified mail to the other
party. The parties’ respective addresses are as follows:

To the School District: Jamie Merath, Executive Director of Business Services
School District of Beloit
Kolak Education Center
1633 Keeler Avenue
Beloit, WI 53511

To the City of Beloit: David Zibolski, Chief of Police
City of Beloit
100 State Street
Beloit, WI 53511

4. APPOINTMENT AND EMPLOYMENT OF CROSSING GUARDS. The School District agrees,
pursuant to § 120.13(31), Wis. Stats., to appoint and to employ sufficient adult crossing guards to serve
the needs of persons crossing streets and highways in the vicinity of the schools in the School District.
The School District shall be responsible for the employment and supervision of the adult school crossing
guards.

5. TRAINING AND PLACEMENT OF CROSSING GUARDS. The School District agrees to provide
training to all crossing guard persons so that they will have a thorough knowledge of their assignment
and safety related job skills. The School District, in consultation with the City, through its Police
Department, shall determine the placement and assign the crossing guard to their respective locations.
The City, through its Police Department, agrees to provide such traffic statistics as the School District
requests.

6. UNIFORMS AND EQUIPMENT. The City agrees to provide all school crossing guard personnel
with necessary uniforms and equipment required for performance of their duties.

7. PAYMENT FROM THE CITY TO THE SCHOOL DISTRICT. The City agrees to reimburse the School
District for a portion of the cost of providing adult school crossing services up to a maximum of $47,000
per year. The City shall be required to reimburse the School District only for those services performed
by the School District employees in their role as adult school crossing guards.

8. BILLINGS. The School District shall bill the City for the actual cost, up to the City’s maximum
share identified in Paragraph 7, of providing crossing guard services as follows:

Date of Bill For Services/Costs Rendered From
Initial Term 12/31/16 07/01/16 to 12/31/16
Initial Term 06/30/17 01/01/17 to 06/30/17

Renewal Term 1 12/31/17 07/01/17 to 12/31/17
Renewal Term 1 06/30/18 01/01/18 to 06/30/18

Renewal Term 2 12/31/18 07/01/18 to 12/31/18
Renewal Term 2 06/30/19 01/01/19 to 06/30/19



CA File Number: 16-1152 Page 3 of 4 Adult Crossing Guard Agreement

The bill shall be itemized showing the amount of wages and benefits paid to each crossing guard for
services performed.

9. INDEMNIFICATION. Each party agrees to be responsible for their own negligent acts, errors or
omissions in the performance of this Agreement, without waiving any governmental immunity available
to the City and without waiving any defenses of the Parties and any of their respective successors
and/or assigns under Wisconsin law. The provisions of this Paragraph are solely for the benefit of the
Parties hereto and any of their respective successors and/or assigns and are not intended to create or
grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any other person or entity.

10. APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and the Parties agree that the Rock County,
Wisconsin shall have jurisdiction to handle any litigation between the Parties.

11. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or unenforceable by a
court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall be valid and
enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

12. AMENDMENTS. No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon any party hereto until
such amendment is reduced to writing and executed by the Parties.

13. AUTHORITY. Each person signing this Agreement represents that he or she is authorized by his
or her organization to execute this Agreement on behalf of that organization and hereby attaches such
authorization to this Agreement as Exhibit A for the City and Exhibit B for the School District.

14. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties regarding
this project. All prior negotiations and discussions have been merged into this Agreement.

15. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. Original
signatures sent by facsimile or by electronic mail shall be accepted as originals and shall be binding upon
the Parties.

Signature Page to Follow



CA File Number: 16-1152 Page 4 of 4 Adult Crossing Guard Agreement

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed and be effective as of
the date first set forth above.

CITY OF BELOIT

By:__________________________________
Lori S. Curtis Luther, City Manager

ATTEST:

By:__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:__________________________________
Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney

I hereby certify that sufficient funds have been
provided to pay the liability that the City may
incur hereunder.

By:__________________________________
Eric Miller, City Comptroller

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT

By:__________________________________
Signature

_________________________________
Print Name, Title

Tdh/files/16-1152/Crossing Guards Agr 20160830 (2016-2019)



CA File Number: 16-1152 Exhibit A Cover Sheet Adult Crossing Guard Agreement

EXHIBIT A

Resolution Authorizing the City of Beloit City Manager to Execute this Agreement
on behalf of the City of Beloit



CA File Number: 16-1152 Exhibit B Cover Sheet Adult Crossing Guard Agreement

EXHIBIT B

Resolution or other Authorization Providing _____________ to Execute this Agreement
on behalf of the School District of Beloit



tdh\files\16-1151\Res = TIC-JFTO Agr 20160830 (2016-2019)

RESOLUTION APPROVING INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT AND THE CITY OF BELOIT

FOR THE TRUANCY INTERVENTION COORDINATOR/
JUVENILE FIRST TIME OFFENDER PROGRAM COORDINATOR

The City Council of the City of Beloit, Rock County, Wisconsin, does hereby find that the

intergovernmental agreement is in the best interests of the City of Beloit and hereby approves

the attached “INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT

AND THE CITY OF BELOIT FOR THE TRUANCY INTERVENTION COORDINATOR/JUVENILE FIRST

TIME OFFENDER PROGRAM COORDINATOR” and that the City Manager is hereby authorized to

execute said intergovernmental agreement on behalf of the City of Beloit and to do all other

things necessary and appropriate to implement and carry out the provisions thereof.

Adopted this 6th day of September, 2016.

CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELOIT

David F. Luebke, President

Attest:

Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk



CITY OF BELOIT
REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS TO CITY COUNCIL

Topic:
RESOLUTION APPROVING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE SCHOOL
DISTRICT OF BELOIT AND THE CITY OF BELOIT FOR THE TRUANCY INTERVENTION
COORDINATOR/ JUVENILE FIRST TIME OFFENDER PROGRAM COORDINATOR

Date: September 6, 2016

Presenter: Elizabeth A. Krueger Department: Attorney

Overview/Background Information:

The attached intergovernmental agreement is a continuation of the collaborative efforts between the City of Beloit and
the School District of Beloit for the provision of an employee to work as a truancy intervention coordinator for the
school district and as the Juvenile First-Time Offender Program Coordinator for the Municipal Court. The prior IGA
expired and is due for renewal. The IGA provides for a one-year agreement with two automatic annual renewal periods.
The maximum financial contribution is ¼ of the employee’s $52,619 annual salary.

Key Issues:

1. The City and the School District will continue to work collaboratively on offering a position that will assist in the
District in addressing truancy issues and for coordinating the Municipal Court’s Juvenile First-Time Offender
Program.

2. The IGA limits the direct financial impact to ¼ of the annualized salary of the position which is $52,619/year.

Conformance to Strategic Plan (List key goals this action would support and briefly discuss its impact on the City’s mission.):

Communicate and partner with other jurisdictions and organizations to coordinate effective and efficient service
delivery and stimulate regional prosperity.

Sustainability (Briefly comment on the sustainable long term impact of this policy or program related to how it will impact both
the built and natural environment utilizing the four following eco-municipality guidelines.):

 Reduce dependence upon fossil fuels N/A
 Reduce dependence on chemicals and other manufacturing substances that accumulate in nature N/A
 Reduce dependence on activities that harm life sustaining eco-systems N/A
 Meet the hierarchy of present and future human needs fairly and efficiently N/A

If any of the four criteria are not applicable to your specific policy or program, an N/A should be entered in that space

Action required/Recommendation:

Staff of both the City and the School District have reviewed the IGA and are recommending approval.

Fiscal Note/Budget Impact:

The City is responsible for payment of ¼ of the $52,619 annualized salary

Attachments:

Agreement
Resolution

20160830



CA File Number: 16-1151 Page 1 of 5 Truancy Intervention Coordinator/
JFTO Coordinator Agreement

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT AND THE CITY OF BELOIT

FOR THE TRUANCY INTERVENTION COORDINATOR/
JUVENILE FIRST TIME OFFENDER PROGRAM COORDINATOR

This Agreement effective this 1st day of July 2016, by and between the City of Beloit, Wisconsin, a
municipal corporation, 100 State Street, Beloit, Wisconsin (hereinafter referred to as “City”), and the
School District of Beloit, 1633 Keeler Avenue, Beloit, Wisconsin (hereinafter referred to as “School
District”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, because society expects schools to meet the needs of youth that range far beyond their
education, community resources must reach into schools to provide additional expertise in that mission;
and

WHEREAS, through the position of a Truancy Intervention Coordinator/Juvenile First Time Offender
Program Coordinator (hereinafter referred to as “TIC”), community resources can be coordinated and
focused in an ideal setting for education; and

WHEREAS, the primary goal of the TIC is to markedly reduce truancy in the School District; and

WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable to continue to refine the TIC duties in order to maintain the
highest levels of student attendance within the School District.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, the mutual covenants and promises contained
herein, and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which they acknowledge, the
Parties hereby enter into this Intergovernmental Agreement pursuant to section 66.0301, Wis. Stats as
follows:

1. PURPOSE. The purpose of this Agreement is to define the financial commitments of the
City and the School District in the establishment of a TIC for the School District of Beloit
and a Coordinator for the Municipal Court’s Juvenile First Time Offender community
service program.

2. INITIAL TERM. The initial term of this Agreement shall be for the 2016-2017 school year
and shall commence as of July 1, 2016 and continue until June 30, 2017.

3. RENEWAL TERMS(S). This Agreement shall be automatically renewed for two
successive one-year terms from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2018 to June
30, 2019, unless either party shall give notice of its election not to renew this
Agreement.



CA File Number: 16-1151 Page 2 of 5 Truancy Intervention Coordinator/
JFTO Coordinator Agreement

4. METHOD OF TERMINATION. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement
of the parties or by either party upon sixty (60) days’ prior notice to the other. Any
termination notice or intent not to renew this Agreement shall be made in writing and
delivered via certified mail to the other party. The parties’ respective addresses are as
follows:

To the School District: Jamie Merath, Executive Director of Business Services
School District of Beloit
Kolak Education Center
1633 Keeler Avenue
Beloit, WI 53511

To the City of Beloit: Deb Weber, Municipal Court Administrator
City of Beloit
100 State Street
Beloit, WI 53511

5. EMPLOYMENT AND SUPERVISION. The TIC will be employed by the School District in
the personnel category of Instructional Support and will be under the supervision of the
Executive Director Office of Pupil Services for the School District. Both parties agree
that all matters relating to the employment of the TIC including working conditions, pay,
benefits, employee evaluation, training, and discipline shall remain with the School
District.

6. SALARY AND COST SHARING. Both the City and the School District mutually agree that
the TIC shall be paid a salary of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($52,619.00) per annum with no
overtime pay (exempt from overtime). The annual period of employment shall be for
260 working days and the TIC shall also be entitled to two (2) weeks of vacation each
year. The parties agree that the annual period of employment for the TIC shall include
the summer months when school is not normally in session. Both parties further agree
that the annual salary for the TIC (including benefits) shall be divided at 25% chargeable
to the City and 75% chargeable to the School District.

7. APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Wisconsin, and the Parties agree
that the Rock County, Wisconsin shall have jurisdiction to handle any litigation between
the Parties.

8. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

9. AMENDMENTS. No amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon any party
hereto until such amendment is reduced to writing and executed by the Parties.

10. AUTHORITY. Each person signing this Agreement represents that he or she is
authorized by his or her organization to execute this Agreement on behalf of that



CA File Number: 16-1151 Page 3 of 5 Truancy Intervention Coordinator/
JFTO Coordinator Agreement

organization and hereby attaches such authorization to this Agreement as Exhibit A for
the City and Exhibit B for the School District.

11. INDEMNIFICATION. Each party hereby agrees to defend and hold the other Parties,
their officers, agents and employees harmless from any liability for any claims, including
attorney’s fees, arising out of its acts or omissions or the acts or omissions of its officers,
agents and employees.

12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties
regarding this project. All prior negotiations and discussions have been merged into this
Agreement.

13. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which together shall constitute one
agreement. Original signatures sent by facsimile or by electronic mail shall be accepted
as originals and shall be binding upon the Parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed and be effective as of
the date first set forth above.

CITY OF BELOIT

By:__________________________________
Lori S. Curtis Luther, City Manager

ATTEST:

By:__________________________________
Lorena Rae Stottler, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By:__________________________________
Elizabeth A. Krueger, City Attorney

I hereby certify that sufficient funds have been
provided to pay the liability that the City may
incur hereunder.

By:__________________________________
Eric Miller, City Comptroller

SCHOOL DISTRICT OF BELOIT

By:__________________________________
Signature

_________________________________
Print Name, Title



CA File Number: 16-1151 Exhibit A Cover Sheet Truancy Intervention Coordinator/
JFTO Coordinator Agreement

EXHIBIT A

Resolution Authorizing the City of Beloit City Manager to Execute this Agreement
on behalf of the City of Beloit



CA File Number: 16-1151 Exhibit B Cover Sheet Truancy Intervention Coordinator/
JFTO Coordinator Agreement

EXHIBIT B

Resolution or other Authorization Providing _____________ to Execute this Agreement
on behalf of the School District of Beloit


	Tuesday, September 6, 2016
	1.	CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL
	2.	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	3.	SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY/ANNOUNCEMENTS
	a.	Proclamation supporting participation in “The Big Read Read” Program, “Into the Beautiful North”  (Leavy)
	b.	Proclamation recognizing the 120th Anniversary of the Daughters of American Revolution  (Leavy)
	c.	Proclamation celebrating the 175th Anniversary of St. Paul Episcopal Church  (Leavy)
	d.	Proclamation recognizing September as National Infant Mortality Awareness Month  (Hendrix)

	4.	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	a. Proposed Ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map of the City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use designation of the property located at 1750 Raven Drive (previously Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd) from Parks & Open Spaces to Single-Family Residential - Urban (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0  First Reading
	b. Proposed Ordinance amending the City of Beloit Zoning District Map for property located at 1750 Raven Drive (previously Easternmost 2 Acres of 1601 Gateway Blvd) from PLI, Public Lands and Institutions District to R-1A, Single Family Residential District (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0  First Reading 
	c. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow an indoor entertainment venue with beer sales & consumption in an M-2, General Manufacturing District, for a golf simulation lab within the Ironworks complex located at 625-701 Third Street  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0
	d. Resolution authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor seating area and outdoor sales, possession & consumption of alcoholic beverages in a C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, for the property located at 1028 Mary Street  (Christensen)  Plan Commission recommendation for approval 6-0

	5.	CITIZEN PARTICIPATION
	6.	CONSENT AGENDA
	a. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular meeting of August 15 and Special Meeting of August 23, 2016 (Stottler)
	b.  Application for American Transmission (ATC) for a Utility Easement located at 3015 Cranston Road  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission
	c.  Application for a Condominium Plat for Walnut Grove Condominiums located at 2260 and 2265 Walnut Street  (Christensen)  Refer to Plan Commission

	7.	ORDINANCES
	a.	Proposed Ordinance attaching the property located at 2028 E Ridge Road to the City of Beloit (Christensen) First reading, suspend rules for second reading.

	8.	APPOINTMENTS - None
	10.	CITY MANAGER’S PRESENTATION - None
	11.	REPORTS FROM BOARDS AND CITY OFFICERS
	a.	Resolution authorizing the Purchase of 106 Bluff Street from John Wergin  (Christensen)
	b.	Resolution providing for the Sale of approximately $13,450,000 Water System Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2016C  (Miller)
	c.  Resolution denying petition to remove the Public Sidewalk adjacent to 1650 Ritsher Street (Boysen)
	d.  Resolution approving an Intergovernmental Agreement between the School District of Beloit and the City of Beloit for Adult School Crossing Guards  (Zibolski/Krueger)
	e.  Resolution approving Intergovernmental Agreement between the School District of Beloit and the City of Beloit for the Truancy Intervention Coordinator/Juvenile First Time Offender Program Coordinator  (Krueger)

	12.	ADJOURNMENT

